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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE TO

Tender Offer Statement Pursuant to Section 14(d)(1) or 13(e)(1)

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

AVG TECHNOLOGIES N.V.

(Name of Subject Company)

AVAST SOFTWARE B.V.

(Name of Filing Persons (Offeror))

AVAST HOLDING B.V.

(Name of Filing Persons (Parent of Offeror))

Ordinary shares, �0.01 nominal value per share

(Title of Class of Securities)

N07831105

(CUSIP Number of Class of Securities)
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Avast Holding B.V.

c/o Avast Software s.r.o.

Trianon Office Building

Budejovicka 1518/13A

140 00 Prague 4 � Michle / Czech Republic

Attention: Alan Rassaby

+420 274 005 607

(Name, address and telephone number of person authorized to receive notices and communications on behalf of
filing persons)

with copies to:

Ian Bagshaw

Caroline Sherrell

White & Case LLP

5 Old Broad Street

London EC2N 1DW

United Kingdom

+44 20 7532 1000

Chang-Do Gong

White & Case LLP

1155 Avenue of the Americas

New York, NY 10036-2787

+1 212 819 8200
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CALCULATION OF FILING FEE

Transaction Valuation Amount of Filing Fee
N/A* N/A*

* A filing fee is not required in connection with this filing as it relates solely to preliminary communications made
before the commencement of the tender offer.

¨ Check the box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing with which the
offsetting fee was previously paid. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or
Schedule and the date of its filing.

Amount Previously Paid: n/a Filing Party: n/a
Form of Registration No.: n/a Date Filed: n/a

x Check the box if the filing relates solely to preliminary communications made before the commencement of a
tender offer.

Check the appropriate boxes below to designate any transactions to which the statement relates:

x Third-party tender offer subject to Rule 14d-1.

¨ Issuer tender offer subject to Rule 13e-4.

¨ Going-private transaction subject to Rule 13e-3.

¨ Amendment to Schedule 13D under Rule 13d-2.
Check the following box if the filing is a final amendment reporting the results of the tender offer. ¨

If applicable, check the appropriate box(es) below to designate the appropriate rule provision(s) relied upon:

¨ Rule 13e-4(i) (Cross-Border Issuer Tender Offer)

¨ Rule 14d-1(d) (Cross-Border Third-Party Tender Offer)
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On July 14, 2016, the following post was made to the Avast Software Facebook page
(https://www.facebook.com/avast/). This post includes a hyperlink to an article posted to a trade publication website
(https://www.the-parallax.com/2016/07/12/avast-avg-buy-oomph-scale-stability-qa/), the text of which is provided
below.
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What does Avast get from the AVG merger? CEO Vince Steckler says: Oomph, scale, stability. Read the Q&A for
more insight http://bit.ly/29On7ZN via The Parallax

Forward-Looking Statements. This communication may contain forward-looking information that involves substantial
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such
statements. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of the communication, and Avast does not assume
any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement, except as required by law.

Additional Information and Where to Find it. The tender offer referenced in this communication has not yet
commenced. This communication is for informational purposes only and is neither an offer to purchase nor a
solicitation of an offer to sell any AVG ordinary shares. At the time the tender offer is commenced, Avast will file a
tender offer statement on Schedule TO, including an Offer to Purchase, the related Letter of Transmittal and other
tender offer documents, and AVG will file a Solicitation/Recommendation Statement on Schedule 14D-9, with the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the �SEC�). AVG shareholders are urged to read the tender offer statement
and Solicitation/Recommendation Statement (when they are filed with the SEC and become available) carefully
because they will contain important information that AVG shareholders should consider before making any decision
regarding tendering their securities. The Offer to Purchase, the related Letter of Transmittal and other tender offer
documents, as well as the Solicitation/Recommendation Statement, when filed with the SEC, will be available no
expense to AVG shareholders from the website maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov.

Avast�s vision for AVG buy: Oomph, scale, and stability

(Q&A) - The Parallax

Vince Steckler, CEO of Parallax sponsor Avast, discusses why his company is ...

HTTP:/BIT.LY/29ON7ZN | BY SETH ROSENBLATT
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AVAST�S VISION FOR AVG BUY: OOMPH, SCALE, AND STABILITY (Q&A)

By Seth Rosenblatt

July 12, 2016

If you�ve ever had a Windows computer, the odds are pretty good that you�ve used Avast or AVG for antivirus
protection. At the end of last week, the two providers of free antivirus software announced that Avast will buy AVG
for $1.3 billion.

The deal between the two European companies is about more than just subsuming competition or creating the world�s
largest computer antivirus player by consumer market share, says Vince Steckler, CEO of Avast Software, which
sponsors this site.

Steckler, who joined Avast seven years ago, after serving as senior vice president of worldwide sales at Symantec,
argues that the merged company will weather an incoming computer security storm of consolidation and other
challenges because of its combined user base of more than 400 million computer end points (160 million to
170 million on mobile devices, the rest on Windows and Mac computers) and its willingness to invest in new security
technologies.

Both companies were founded in what is now the Czech Republic; Avast in Prague in 1988, AVG in Brno in 1991.
AVG is now a publicly traded company based in Amsterdam. Presuming that the sale is approved by regulators and
shareholders, the purchase price represents a 33 percent bump over the closing price of AVG stock on July 6, the day
the sale was announced.

On Monday morning, Steckler spoke with me about his vision for the combined company and for the broader security
industry. Here is an edited transcript of our conversation.

Q: What�s your vision behind the merger?

Security companies�especially those that are PC-oriented�have to start consolidating. Right now, things are still fairly
fragmented. You�ve got the American players (such as Symantec�s Norton and Intel�s McAfee), you�ve got the Russian
player (Kaspersky Lab), you�ve got the Korean player (Ahn Labs), you�ve got the Spanish player (Panda Security), and
you�ve got a lot of regional players. As the market for PCs matures, so must the market for security.

We thought that AVG and Avast had a much better future together than separate. One of AVG�s issues has been its
U.S. customer base and thus its reliance on the health of the PC and mobile business in the United States. Avast�s
customer base, by contrast, is much more non-English-speaking. This has given it a lot more breadth, of course, and
made it less sensitive to U.S. movements, but it also has made it a less significant player in some of the world�s richest
markets for IT.

Bringing us together will give us a lot more oomph and scale and stability.

What does the merger mean for consumers?

It means two things: First, there won�t be a noticeable change. Avast and AVG are very strong consumer brands. We
plan on running a dual-brand strategy. Of the security products people around the world are searching most for on
Google, No. 1 is Avast, No. 2 is Norton, No. 3 is AVG. We have very strong brand visibility around the
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world. Some markets, such as France and Brazil, are stronger for Avast; some, such as the United States, are stronger
for AVG.

The second part is that by merging the underlying technology and increasing the number of sensors, we�ll be making
users more secure. The idea is, though, that they won�t see that happening.

What�s the underlying value to Avast of having more people using its software?

Avast is very strong with consumers, but we needed a second strong revenue link, and we wanted that to be mobile or
corporate.

We�ve been wanting to work with mobile carriers, providing security or family safety or geofencing middleware they
can offer their subscribers. Doing this would provide value to the subscribers and brand stickiness to us. For now, we
have a nascent mobile business, which is going down the path of an advertising-based model.

To make an advertising model really work in mobile, you need a minimum of 200 million end points, by our
calculations. We have 65 million end points, and although it�s growing nicely now�we grew 5 million in the last two
months�it takes a long time to organically get to 200 million.

To get to scale rapidly, we could spend a massive amount on pay-per-click/pay-per-impression, but we don�t spend that
kind of money. (Cheetah Mobile, which has a lot of money from its IPO and is trying to get to scale quickly, spends
$6 per monthly active user to acquire and keep users. That�s phenomenal.)

AVG offers us two things: It has its own base of organic-built users�105 million to 110 million on mobile. So together,
we have 170 million mobile users, which gets us pretty close to that magical 200 million point.

With acquisitions and other endeavors, AVG also is also getting into the market for small and midsize businesses. Its
SMB business plus ours is still relatively small, compared to McAfee or Symantec, but it�s about five or six times
bigger than what we have by ourselves right now. It�s a nice start. Adding real complementary product lines makes
Avast, as a whole, a much more sound company.

What does the deal mean for the antivirus industry as a whole?

It�s hard to say. Most of the larger security players use their consumer business to support their investment in
enterprise. If you step away from the top-tier traditional, pay-only business model guys�Norton, McAfee,
Kaspersky�you�ve got a bunch of smaller traditional guys, and then the three guys with a more disruptive, freemium
model: Avast, AVG, and Avira.

Avira is basically just in countries that speak German. Panda has a footprint in Spain, Ahn Labs in Korea, Trend
Micro in Japan. The only two companies that have large global footprints were Avast and AVG. So this acquisition
will take two of the most attractive candidates off the table.

What�s the future for antivirus companies? Is the label antiquated? Misleading?

It is so 1980s!

And with consumers, you can�t change the name. Antivirus products, for 10, 15, even 20 years, have been so much
bigger than just antivirus. This is all the protection most users have. Their vulnerability assessments, their intrusion
detection, their everything.
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Antivirus products, like the devices they run on, are not going away. They�re going to be around for many, many years.
There�s still a huge market for them, and there�s still a tremendous opportunity in that market.

What role did technology developments play in driving the merger?

Each device is actually a sensor. In the old days, when malware was very long-lasting and had a big reach, you could
get by with a lot of other ways of doing security�the traditional virus lab stuff, exchanging data with your
competitors�and it didn�t matter if you were a few days late because the malware would still be out there in the wild.

Security products today are being designed to collect data from each user�each end point�as a real-time security sensor.
Each end point runs a virtual machine, and inside the virtual machine is a honeypot to attract threats and a sandbox in
which to test them. You can collect a massive amount of data.

And the amount of data that you can collect with hundreds of millions of end points is just phenomenal. It can really
improve the security of our products.

So a year from now, we should expect the combined technology to take the No. 1 slot on independent
threat-blocking tests?

The problem with the tests is that they�re not based in reality. Is there much of a difference, if you�re 98.3 percent
effective versus 97.8 percent? As far as the test is concerned, that�s fairly trivial.

I wouldn�t commit that our products are going to have the highest test scores. We�re really looking for what users think
about our products�how they rate us on Amazon. That�s a much longer-term indicator of how good a product is.

So users should look to how antivirus products are rated on Amazon?

Formal product reviews are OK for telling how the product works, but the vast majority of users want to install it and
forget it. You want a product that does reasonably well on those tests, but slight differences don�t necessarily harm the
user.

On the tests, one false positive gives you a fail. The test samples largely come from German download sites, which are
rarely seen outside the German markets. So it�s easy to tune a product to detect those samples.

You may read a review on Consumer Reports, but it�s the user reviews that will tell you over time how your product is
really doing.

What are some of the risks of the acquisition?

The big one is not integrating well enough. The whole point of doing this is more scale, so we have a better business
for the future. We have to be able to execute very, very well on that, or we can sink. We obviously will pay a lot of
attention to that.

Avast appears to be taking on a lot of debt for this deal.

It is a lot of debt, in terms of dollars. But in terms of ratio, it is not. The ratio that we�re taking is about the same when
CVC invested in the company. It�s not highly leveraged. And that�s because Avast throws off so much cash, Avast�s
profit margins are plus or minus 70 percent.
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Given Avast and AVG�s historical proximity and similar business models, had you previously discussed a
merger or acquisition?

These talks have been happening off and on for years. Ondrej [Vlcek, Avast�s chief operating officer and an employee
of the company since 1995], remembers a meeting in 1998 with AVG�s founders.

What changed this time?

AVG said yes.

Where are you seeing Avast�s growth in the next few years?

The consumer market is still growing for us at about 20 percent a year. We see the potential to grow AVG�s core
consumer business too, re-energizing growth there. And obviously mobile. By getting these two mobile install bases
together, there�s so much more you can do with that now.

What about the Internet of Things?

There�s development to handle the scale. That�s the continued pushing of the cloud-based technologies, and the
machine learning to handle that instantaneous real-time or zero-day protections.

The Internet of Things is really intriguing, but it�s really hard to define what the heck Internet of Things is. Very few of
these �things� talk on the Internet directly. Because they�re largely connecting to a home router, our IoT focus on is
layering additional protections and security on the home router.

Once they start connecting on the Internet, they�ll essentially be mobile devices, which is why getting a big footprint in
mobile for us became important. Mobile will become the core of IoT.

While both Avast and AVG have some iOS options, VPNs and Family Management tools, neither Avast nor
AVG has its core threat-blocking technologies on the iPhone. Is that the extent the role of antivirus on iPhones?
Has Apple solved core security problems?

Very few security products are allowed in the App Store, but that�s not the same thing as saying Apple devices don�t
have security problems. The largest security problem on an Apple device is also the largest security problem on
Android devices or PCs: the user. It�s just as easy to spear-phish someone on an iOS device as on an Android device,
for example.

Software can detect a lot of that. But on iOS, you�re not allowed to distribute it.

Forward-Looking Statements

This communication contains forward-looking information that involves substantial risks and uncertainties that could
cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such statements. All statements other than
statements of historical fact are, or may be deemed to be, forward-looking statements within the meaning of the
federal securities laws, and involve a number of risks and uncertainties. In some cases, forward-looking statements
can be identified by the use of forward-looking terms such as �anticipate,� �estimate,� �believe,� �continue,� �could,� �intend,�
�may,� �plan,� �potential,� �predict,� �should,� �will,� �expect,� �are confident that,� �objective,� �projection,� �forecast,� �goal,� �guidance,�
�outlook,� �effort,� �target,� �would� or the negative of these terms or other comparable terms. There are a number of
important factors that could cause actual events to differ materially from those suggested or indicated by such
forward-looking statements and you should not place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements. These
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factors include risks and
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uncertainties related to, among other things: general economic conditions and conditions affecting the industries in
which Avast Holdings B.V. (�Parent�), Avast Software B.V. (�Purchaser�) and AVG Technologies N.V. (�AVG�) operate;
the uncertainty of regulatory approvals; the parties� ability to satisfy the conditions to the contemplated tender offer
and consummate the transactions described in this communication; and AVG�s performance and maintenance of
important business relationships. Additional information regarding the factors that may cause actual results to differ
materially from these forward-looking statements is available in AVG�s SEC filings, including AVG�s Annual Report
on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2015. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of
this communication, and neither Parent, Purchaser nor AVG assumes any obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events and developments or otherwise,
except as required by law.

Additional Information and Where to Find It

The tender offer referenced in this communication has not yet commenced. This communication is for informational
purposes only and is neither an offer to purchase nor a solicitation of an offer to sell any ordinary shares of AVG or
any other securities, nor is it a substitute for the tender offer materials that Parent and Purchaser will file with the SEC.
The solicitation and offer to purchase ordinary shares of AVG will only be made pursuant to an Offer to Purchase, a
related letter of transmittal and certain other tender offer documents. At the time the tender offer is commenced,
Parent and Purchaser will file a tender offer statement on Schedule TO, including an Offer to Purchase, a related letter
of transmittal and certain other tender offer documents, and AVG will file a Solicitation/Recommendation Statement
on Schedule 14D-9, with the SEC, each with respect to the tender offer. The tender offer statement (including the
Offer to Purchase, the related Letter of Transmittal and certain other tender offer documents) and the
solicitation/ recommendation statement will contain important information. AVG�s shareholders are urged to
read the tender offer statement and Solicitation/Recommendation Statement, as they may be amended from
time to time, as well as any other relevant documents filed with the SEC, when they become available, carefully
and in their entirety because they will contain important information that holders of AVG�s securities should
consider before making any decision regarding tendering their securities. The Offer to Purchase, the related
Letter of Transmittal and certain other tender offer documents, as well as the Solicitation/Recommendation Statement,
will be made available to all holders of ordinary shares of AVG at no expense to them. The tender offer materials and
the Solicitation/Recommendation Statement will be made available for free at the SEC�s website at www.sec.gov.
Copies of the documents filed with the SEC by AVG will be available free of charge on AVG�s website
at www.avg.com. In addition to the Offer to Purchase, the related Letter of Transmittal and certain other tender offer
documents, as well as the Solicitation/Recommendation Statement, AVG files annual, quarterly and current reports
and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any reports or other information filed by AVG at the
SEC public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330
for further information on the public reference room. AVG�s filings with the SEC are also available to the public from
commercial document-retrieval services and at the website maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov.
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